II.

[1L.

IV.

VI

VIL

VIII.

IX.

AGENDA

Broadband Advisory Council Meeting

May 14th, 2025

3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

In-Person Option:

Hilton Richmond Hotel

12042 W Broad St
Richmond, VA 23233

Virtual Option (via Microsoft Teams):
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device

Join the meeting now

Meeting ID: 254 491 800 637

Passcode: wa9rJ99a
Dial in by phone:

+1 434-230-0065,,332758399# United States, South Hill

Find a local number

Phone conference ID: 332 758 399#

Opening
a. Call to Order
b. Roll Call

Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman
Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes: December 6, 2024 Meeting

Overview of Discussion

Office of Broadband Updates

a. Virginia Telecommunication Initiative (VATI)
a. Virginia Make Ready initiative (VMRI)
. BEAD Deployment
c. BEAD Non-Deployment
d. Digital Opportunity

Public Comment
New Business

Adjournment

Chairman
DHCD Staff

Council Members

Chairman

Bryan Horn, Director, DHCD
Tamarah Holmes, Ph.D., Director,
Office of Broadband

Office of Broadband Staff

Chairman
Council Members

Chairman


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWIyNzI5MzctZDkwZS00M2Y5LWIxYjUtNDgwZWU0YzhlYTUx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22620ae5a9-4ec1-4fa0-8641-5d9f386c7309%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22d9b134ab-2c4f-430f-acb9-e2531f323ed2%22%7d
tel:+14342300065,,332758399
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/69fbdf03-a314-4206-b210-d4d007632545?id=332758399

Members Present

Chair, Senator Boysko
Senator Hashmi
Delegate Herring
Delegate Willett
Delegate Srinivasan
Casey Logan

Rich Schollman
Steve Sandy

Jimmy Carr

Ray LaMura

Kristie Proctor

BROADBAND ADVISORY COUNCIL
UNAPPROVED MINUTES
December 6, 2024
10:00 AM
Meadow Hall (Meadow Event Park)
13111 Dawn Blvd
Doswell, VA 23047
Virtual Option provided via Microsoft Teams

Members Absent

Delegate Leftwich
Senator Hackworth

Call to Order Senator Jennifer Boysko, Acting Chair of the Broadband Advisory
Council, called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.
Roll Call Chandler Vaughan, Associate Director at the Office of Broadband,

called the roll and stated that a quorum was present.

Approval of Minutes:

January 9, 2024 Meeting

A motion was made and properly seconded to approve the
minutes of the August 16, 2024, meeting of the Broadband
Advisory Council. The motion passed to adopt the minutes as
presented.

General Remarks

Acting Chair Senator Boysko acknowledged Breezeline for their
hospitality in arranging meeting accommodations and their
demonstration of fiber optic network construction efforts in
Caroline and Essex counties.

Bryan Horn, VA Department of Housing and Community
Development (DHCD) provided remarks on the recognition
Virginia has received in efforts to bridge digital divide (e.g. BEAD,
Virginia Make Ready Initiative, Digital Opportunity).




Overview of Discussion

Tamarah Holmes Ph.D., Director of the Office of Broadband
provided brief verbal updates on the Office’s work. Dr. Holmes
detailed how we are adding focus on affordability and adoption in
addition to maintaining focus on infrastructure. from infrastructure
to affordability and adoption of broadband

Office of Broadband
Updates

Caroline Luxhoj, VATI Program Manager, presented on: historical
funding of the program (FY17-FY23), the risk determination process
in light of new language added to FY2025 and FY2026 biennium
budget, and provided updates on the contracting status of Virginia
Make Ready Initiative awards.

Director of the Office of Broadband Tamarah Holmes, Ph.D.
provided an overview of federal last-mile deployment program,
BEAD, to close the availability gap because “access to affordable,
reliable high-speed broadband is essential to full participation in
society.” A timeline of the state’s application window and how
many letters of intent were received per locality was showcased.

Chandler Vaughan, Associate Director of the Office of Broadband
provided an overview of DHCD’s approach to non-deployment
recommendations in alignment with National
Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA)
guidance, including: (1) a cellular connectivity program which can
help cover the cost of cell towers to extend cell service in regions
without coverage; (2) multi-dwelling unit (MDU) connectivity
program to provide unit-level broadband availability; (3) state
agency and state organization partnerships to implement
broadband adoption programs; and (4) a gap fill long-term
connectivity barriers wherein innovative technologies will be
used to reach locations mis-mapped under BEAD.

Council members shared their sentiments, interests, and initial
thoughts on the developing work within the Office of Broadband.

Public Comment

No public comment was provided at the meeting.

New Business

Council members shared their interests, and initial thoughts on
the BEAD Non-Deployment initiatives under development within
the Office of Broadband.

Ray LaMura requested that the Broadband Advisory Council
review concerns from ISPs about state agencies mandating the
relocation of broadband that was built to unserved areas with a
federal or state grant. As the original purpose of these broadband




grants were to collaborate with the private sector to extend the

internet to unserved areas, that were without an economic
rationale.

Adjournment

Upon a motion made and properly seconded, the meeting was
adjourned at 11:12 p.m.




5/9/2025

Broadband Advisory g8 | ' . Call to Order
Council Meeting = | \

May 14, 2025

M VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING S VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
455, AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
i DHCD

[£1.== " AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
.. ==
2bico :

Roll Call Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING

RS VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
r = AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT '
i20HCD ox Bt > 21 DHCD

38 =2 AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes:
December 6, 2024 Meeting

& VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
[f =2 AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT f

AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT




Overview of Discussion

Bryan Horn, Director, VA Department of Housing and Community

Development (DHC

Tamarah Holmes, Ph.D, Director, Office of Broadband

X VIRGINIA DEPARIMENT OF HOUSING
E iy AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Office of Broadband Updates

In Order of Presenting:

5/9/2025

Caroline Luxhoj, Program Manager, Virginia Telecommunication Initiative

Tamarah Holmes,

Director

Kayla Bravo, Policy Planner

r\‘.\a- VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
=.  AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DHCD v 2

How are the Projects Going?

VATI PROJECT PROGRESS — PASSINGS CONSTRUCTED VS. REMAINING
AS OF APRIL 2025

1005
o 1,586
oo
a0
- 156250
oo
son
2

aon
aon
o 129,666
10%

o

Fy21 Fr22

21972
7,608

Fr2a Fr2e

 Constructed  ® Remaining

How are the Projects Going?

Total Passings Made, FY21 thru FY24 VATI Projects,

180

2 4 6

Locations Provided Broadband Access

through End-of-March 2025

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46

Months since January 2021

— Total Passings Made

VATI Project Risk Status

e Overview
o 64 total open VATI projects
o Not at Risk: 28
o Low Risk: 29
o High Risk: 7
= 5 funded with ARPA dollars.

e High risk projects trigger additional

monitoring.

High Risk
11%

Not at Risk
44%

Low Risk
45%

m NotatRisk = LowRisk m High Risk

11

VATI Project Delay Data

Supply Chain &Labor
Federal Permitting
Utility Locates
Right of Way

Other

Railroad

Make Ready

Reasons for Project Delay
as of April 2025 Montly Reports

—

I
2]
o 10 1 »




5/9/2025

Virginia Make Ready Initiative Awards to Date

September

+  Awarded: $2,656,961.10
« Leveraged: $963,864.49
*  Locations: 3,520

October

+  Awarded: $6,569,744.14
« Leveraged: $2,189,902.71
* Locations: 4,871

November

+  Awarded: $6,413,855.18
« Leveraged: $2,166,781.46
+ Locations: 9,587

December

+  Awarded: $7,678,506.48
« Leveraged: $2,620,394.91
* Locations: 11,353

January

+  Awarded: $2,082,903.89
« Leveraged: $694,301.30
+ Locations: 8,463

February

«  Awarded: $1,207,799.64

«  Leveraged: $2,609,060.72
+  Locations: 6,191

Ma;

y

$7,370,710.47 available

Application deadline: May 8

DHCD currently reviewing proposals
Awards by end of May

Expenditures submitted by June 13

Virginia Make Ready Initiative Awards to Date

VMRI Funds By Grantee

$399.007.31

Virginia Make Ready Initiative Awards to Date

Funding By ISP

BEAD Update: -
Deployment =2 3

Application Processes Completed!
+ Initial Cycle Concluded March 1
+ Negotiation Cycle Concluded April 28

Confidential award notification sent to
Initial Cycle awardees on March 27

Negotiation Cycle awardees will not be
notified prior to issuance of pending new
federal guidance

100% of locations will be covered via mix
of technologies

16

BEAD Deployment: What's Coming Next?

Negotiation Cycle Review
« Office of Broadband staff continues its review of proposals submitted under the Negotiation Cycle
« These awards may not be announced in order to retain flexibility under new federal guidance.

Final Proposal:

« Office of Broadband staffis developing the Final Proposal, which includes:

«  All award recommendations for deployment projects
« Detailed plans for Non-Deployment Projects
« Subgrantee monitoring and compliance measures

Federal Guidance Updates:
« Al states and territories received a 90-day automatic extension to submit Final Proposals
« Guidance is forthcoming from National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA) on

changes to BEAD program under Trump Administration.

« Office of Broadband staff will review changes when published and adjust program requirements and
timeline accordingly to issue draft Final Proposal for public comment period and submission to NTIA.

BEAD :
Non-Deployment -~
Update

Virginia's work to build on the
momentum of addressing
broadband access to close the

whole digital divide.




5/9/2025

BEAD Non-Deployment Funding in Virginia Cellular Connectivity (((

ample Use:
- Eligible Uses of Funding Adminisirative funding "*
";“W"‘f""’ +  Preliminary mapping shows ~9,200 locations that can’t make a phone call, and an additional "
Total VA e @ o opportunty ~45,000 locations can call and text, but nothing else.
5 $1.48B st Digiat Promot Remole .
sk, rn)mlﬁugnwa plan s-u.wm:z learning & outre A cellular connectivity program would help cover the cost of cell towers
implementation Affordabilty  telehealth services  digit Sample Program: and extend cell service to these locations, roads, and regions without
Device and .
smariphons trainings baseline cell coverage
for Engiish leamers in )
Funding to be first allocated libraries, schools, - Towers can be leveraged for emergency services,
1o schieve universal Stakehokder Boadband sign-up  Digital safety & B local government and private-sector needs
s Dvoncbacd srcens, hen engagementcosts  assistance & tech  cybersecurity user 9 P!
s remaining funds for non- support programs \raining

deployment activities,

including state agency Sample Program:
partnerships Cybarsecunty, scam,
& financial 101

[ fot aging
Digital navigators  Digital lteracy &  Prisoner education  Computer science, ol 4
upshiling coding, & Gybersecurity
Virginia state agencies lo . education
‘administer grants to
1M programs supporting the 11
types of npie Program: Developing smart Samplo Program: Worsforce development
activities agriculture for 1o the public 19
farming practices i to facilite their reantry into the workforce

19

Multi Dwelling Unit (MDU) Connectivity
State Agency & State Organization Partnerships

While broadband service is usually available around MDUs and apartment buildings, units
within those buildings sometimes don't have individual serviceability to them

- o L . DHCD has been building capacity with state agencies regarding broadband adoption
Families and individuals within these buildings

y P . TYPES OF HOUSING
without individual C.0n_neCt|0nS often operate on To date, DHCD is moving forward with finalizing 31 broadband adoption projects across 15 state
sub-par, shared Wi-Fi networks that do not agencies, to form our Agency Partnership Non-Deployment part of the BEAD program

meet modern internet speed standards
This program would work with mﬁ ﬁ + Some example partnerships include: (not an all-inclusive list)
! 1 b

o Partner with DVS for veteran programs centered around technology and connectivity
o Partner with Va Coop. Ext. for precision agriculture programs/smart farming adoption

o Partner with DOE Office of Adult Education and Department of Corrections to promote
digital literacy and education for incarcerated individuals

broadband providers to provide unit-level l
connectivity to unserved MDUs,
targeting low-income households first,
then all such buildings

Non-deployment projects give the Commonwealth a chance The Commonwealth’s non-deployment projects span across
to invest in digital opportunity focus areas the digital opportunity categories
Project Count by Category* Project Budget by Category ($M)*
v $120
@ $100 Total
Digital Workforce Telehealth Digital Trainers Digital Agriculture Budget-:
Upskilling "";'ﬂ 50 $110.6M
R $60 m
‘ & E Outdoor $40
B @ ) T
Precision Cybersecurity Outdoor Digital H . 0
Agriculture Resiliency ©

Agriculture 1 S0

Total Budget Requested ($M)
* Etimated and subject tochange, April 2025




5/9/2025

The projects will support digital opportunity for all
Virginians
Of projects reach individuals in
rural areas
Residents are anticipated to be
impacted

Of projects reach veterans

Of cities and counties in Virginia
will be served

Of projects reach aging
individuals

Of projects reach low-income
households

Incarcerated individuals in Virginia
reached

In February, we held a Symposium to foster collaboration and

share projects

26

« 70+ attendees

« 18 agencies, NTIA staff & non-profits

« Intra-agency collaboration in focus
area breakout sessions

« Resulted in an operation model for
the program, with shared goals for
BEAD Non-Deployment Agency

Partnerships

Agencies are currently refining their project budgets and
plans in preparation for Final Proposal submission

Winter 2025 Spring 2025 2026+
© o )

Final Proposal NTIA Approval &

Summer 2024 Fall 2024

Workshops roject
Interviews plementation] Implementation

that can be monitored throughout grant lifecycles. The objectives

During this phase, agencies
during this phase have included:

* Ensuring project budgets are NTIA-compliant

* Finalizing implementation plans that enable easy tracking
* Entering into Letters of Agreement (LOAs) with DHCD

! Timeline Cons

A metnes r ket on ngin fsrol e ndre sufect o chare

For the Specific Questions on State Agency Partnership Development

Please address additional questions to:

Chandler Vaughan

Associate Director, Office of Broadband | Virginia DHCD
804-801-7124 | chandler.vaughan@dhcd.virginia.gov

Colin Hood

Director, State and Local Government | Guidehouse
804-691-7268 | chood@guidehouse.com

28

Gap-Fill Long Term Connectivity Barriers N

Flaws in federal BEAD mapping will lead to gaps in connectivity, especially at recenuy
built homes, secondary homes on a same parcel, and homes covered by dense tree
canopies

Deployment challenges, like railroad crossings and private easements will also lead to
one-off locations without connectivity discovered during project build outs

This program would fund innovative technology solutions — like low earth orbit satellite
technologies - to reach these left behind locations

This program would also hold satellite capacity in reserve to respond to
emergency events.

The Digital Skills, Literacy, and Device (DSLD) Program'’s application

period closed on April 21st

Total VA

& $18.3M S Gavecty

allocation.

Approximately $3M of Capacity
funding will be allocated for
1. Virginia's Digital Opportunity
<= Resource Tool and Digital
Opportunity Awareness
Initiatives.

Total Funding Request.

$13,108,317.71

VA DHCD will administer the
Digital Skills, Literacy, and

Distribution (DSLD) Subgrant
Program with remaining $15M.

47

Digital Skills and
Literacy Projects

20

Digital Navigation
Projects

18

Digital Device
Refurbishment
and/or Distribution
Projects

include more than one project type*




5/9/2025

Update on the VAAPG Program (Planning Grant)

The VAAPG program is
designed to help cities,
counties, and tribal s
governments understand

broadband affordability and
adoption needs in their

\Norion  12Staunton 23 Colonial Heights
2 Galax 13 Waynesboro 24 Petersburg

15 Hopewell
«Radford 15 Charlottesville 5 Emporia
sRoanokeCo isWinchester 17 Frankin

. N iy Sal Fairts Wl
it beter mreparing 2 o
them to address these needs #Covington 19 Manassas " % Poquoscn:
with fothcoming federe PR Mot wdedirbaced

funding. This program closes
on May 31, 2025. /2

~
N‘ - 5 i iynchburg 2z Richmend 23 Portsmauth
ayR

KEY

M Included in Active Project (21)
M included in Project Closeout (7)

o VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DHCD "

New Business

= VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING N VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT



	5.14.25 BAC Meeting Agenda.pdf
	12.6.24 BAC unapproved minutes.pdf
	may 2025 bac presentation no comments.pdf

